
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 

   

December 11, 2012 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 27, 2012 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 741) – Proposed 1170 Woodslee, 

North of Maple Road between Rochester and Stephenson Highway, Section 27, From IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District to RT (One-Family Attached Residential) District 

 
SITE CONDOMINIUM DEVELOPMENT 

 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Bridgewater Estates Site Condominium, 27 

units/lots, East side of John R between Long Lake and Square Lake (5470 John R), Section 12, 
Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, North side of 

Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
9. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 

 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2012 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on November 27, 2012 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat (arrived at 7:22 p.m.) 
John J. Tagle 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-11-075 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:22 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2012-11-076 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the November 13, 2012 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Strat (arrived 7:22 p.m.) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2012 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented ZBA report.   

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
There was not a DDA meeting in November. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented Planning and Zoning report.   

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION ETHICS 

 
Ms. Lori Bluhm, City Attorney, made a presentation on Planning Commission ethics. 
 
There was general discussion on this item 
 
 

9. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT NOVEMBER 27, 2012 
  

 
 

3 
 

The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2012 PC Minutes\Draft\2012 11 27 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PC 2012.12.11 

  Agenda Item # 5 

 

 
 
 
DATE: December 6, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 741) – 

Proposed 1170 Woodslee, North of Maple Road between Rochester and 
Stephenson Highway, Section 27, From IB (Integrated Industrial and 
Business) District to RT (One-Family Attached Residential) District 

 
The applicant, Alvin Ballard, seeks a rezoning of the subject parcel from IB (Integrated 
Industrial and Business) District to RT (One-Family Attached Residential) District.  The 
applicant indicated that the rezoning is needed in order to eliminate the legal 
nonconforming status of his home, so that he can sell it.   
 
The site is adjacent to both IB and RT zoned property. The subject property is on the 
border of Single-Family Residential and 21

st
 Century Industrial.   

 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s 
Planning Consultant, summarizes the rezoning request.  CWA prepared the report with 
input from various City departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and 
Fire.  City Management supports the findings of fact contained in the report and agrees 
with the recommendation.   
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the December 11, 2012 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting.  
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 
3. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 741  1170 Woodslee  Sec 27\PC Memo 12 11 2012.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 741) – Proposed 1170 Woodslee, North of 
Maple Road between Rochester and Stephenson Highway, Section 27, From IB 
(Integrated Industrial and Business) District to RT (One-Family Attached Residential) 
District 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-12- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the IB to RT rezoning request, located north of Maple Road between Rochester and 
Stephenson Highway (1170 Woodslee), in Section 27, being approximately 1.02 acres 
in size, be approved. 
 
Yes:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 741  1170 Woodslee  Sec 27\Proposed PC Resolution 12 11 2012.doc 



1170 WOODSLEE PROPOSED REZONING

10/29/2012

Legend

1: 936

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

780156 156Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



1170 WOODSLEE PROPOSED REZONING

10/29/2012

Legend

1: 983

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

820164 164Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



91

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Single-Family Residential: 

The Social Neighborhood

Social units of the City.• 
Walkable, safe places to live.• 
Centered on schools or other community • 
facilities.
Linked with nearby services.• 

The predominant land use in the City of Troy 
is single family residential.  This category is 

intended to preserve the existing quality 

residential neighborhoods of the City while 

recognizing the need for other uses that 

support the main function of residential 

areas.  The single family areas of the City are 
arranged around Social Neighborhoods.  Social 
Neighborhoods are unique, self-contained 
areas bounded by Troy’s main thoroughfares.  
They are mostly single-family areas centered 
on community elements like schools or parks.  
Social Neighborhoods are described in more 
depth at the end of this Chapter, and are 
illustrated by the solid circles shown on the 
Neighborhoods Map.

In the Single Family Residential areas of the 
City, non-residential uses will be considered 
only when the use is clearly incidental to and 

ancillary to single-family residential, or when 
the use is a park, school, or other community-
oriented public or quasi-public use.

The Social Neighborhoods of the City are 
bounded by the mile square grid pattern of 
Troy’s thoroughfares.  These defi ned areas can 
provide the sense of place that Vision 2020 and 
this Master Plan are striving for.  In most cases, 

they have a school as central focus.  Schools 
continue to be a means of stimulating social 
interaction on many fronts; children establish 
their fi rst friendships, parents meet other local 
parents, schools often host public events.  
Furthermore, the play areas at school provide 
readily accessible recreation opportunities.  
Many Social Neighborhoods in Troy have 
sidewalks promoting accessibility and exercise, 
and Troy schools have walking paths that are 
open to the public.

The ideal Social Neighborhood will exemplify 
the safer, more enjoyable walking environments 
envisioned by the “Safe Routes to School” 
program.

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL



92 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Neighborhoods are approximately 15 • 
minutes walking from end-to-end.  

A wide variety of residential architecture • 
characterizes the various neighborhoods 
of the City.  Non-residential architecture for 
schools and places of worship complement 
the residential setting.   

BUILDING LOCATION

Homes must be located in relation to the • 
street in a manner that complements 
surrounding, established homes.

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Walks which link residences to destinations • 
such as schools, libraries, abutting 
neighborhood commercial service areas, 
coff ee shops, and other neighborhoods are 
critical.

The neighborhoods must include improved • 
perimeter walks that are functional and 
aesthetically pleasing.  These exterior 
walks will directly connect to the activity 
nodes at major intersections and adjacent 
neighborhoods.  Wide walks will be 
constructed which will incorporate 
landscaping and innovative stormwater 
detention areas.  These areas will be 
artistically developed, but functional 
landforms that carry visual interest.  The 
perimeter walks have the ability to bring 
residents of adjacent neighborhoods 
together. 

Neighborhoods should be connected to one • 
another to increase the area where residents 
can readily navigate on foot and expand the 
boundaries of social interaction.  Crosswalks 
near the mid-mile areas of each grid will 
improve outside linkages.

Lighting will not encroach on adjacent • 
properties, and will be used carefully to 
provide safety and security, and for accent 
illumination.



117

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

21st Century Industry: 

A New Opportunity for Growth

Continued encouragement of a variety of • 
industrial uses
Light industrial uses with no outdoor • 
storage or external nuisances are especially 
encouraged
The emphasis for site design should be • 
on screening, landscaping, buff ering, 
and eff ective transitioning to allow this 
important category to succeed without 
negative impacts on residential or 
commercial areas of the City

The 21st Century Industry classifi cation 

provides area for conventional manufacturing 

and assembly uses, but with a broader 

interpretation of what industrial areas can 

become.  In addition to conventional industrial 
uses, shops, and warehousing, this category can 
be home to business-to-business uses that don’t 
require a signifi cant public presence, but which 
work in tandem with the Knowledge Economy 
uses encouraged within the Smart Zone and 
Northfi eld.  Suppliers, fabricators, printers, and 
many other supporting uses which strengthen 
the City’s appeal as a home to 21st Century 
businesses are all encouraged in this category.

An alternative use that may be considered 
on a very limited basis in the 21st Century 
Industrial area is loft-style residential 
development in reclaimed industrial buildings.  
Opportunities for artist lofts and open-fl oorplan 
residential development may exist within new, 
innovative mixed-use projects.  Such projects 
would be an ideal fi t within the 21st Century 
Industrial area.  Such housing will only be 
considered when all potential environmental 
limitations have been identifi ed, and if 
necessary, neutralized.

The majority of the 21st Century Industrial 
lands in Troy surround the Maple Road category 
(see page 105), although they are intermingled 
with areas planned for the Automall, the Smart 
Zone, and the Transit Center.  Existing land 

uses along Maple Road vary widely, and do 

not have a clear, identifi able character.  Maple 
Road is primarily experienced as a series of 
nodes that center on north-to-south traffi  c 
leading into and out of Troy from the Big Beaver 
Corridor.  For this reason, Maple Road is planned 
as a series of areas designed to support the Big 
Beaver Corridor and the Smart Zone, such as the 
business-to-business uses noted above.

21ST CENTURY INDUSTRIAL



118 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

This area will recognize that manufacturing • 
and distribution will continue to provide 
valuable jobs and a tax base. Emphasis 
will be on maintaining a strong image 
by concentrating on site and building 
maintenance as well as redevelopment, 
rather than redevelopment alone.

Code enforcement will be a critical tool to • 
maintain the visual and physical health of 
the district.  

As land becomes available, green • 
space should double and storm water 
management should improve.  

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Primary parking areas are located within rear • 
or interior side yards.

Front yards will be landscaped and well-• 
maintained to continue an improved image.

Green space will be placed along property • 
perimeters to assist with controlling surface 
storm water runoff .

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES     

The offi  ce portion of industrial • 
developments will locate nearest the public 
street. 



 

  

605 S. Main Street 
Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
  

Date:  November 20, 2012 
  

 

Rezoning Analysis  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
Applicant:   Alvin Ballard 
 
Property Address:   1170 Woodslee Drive 
 
Current Zoning:    IB, Integrated Industrial Business District   
 
Requested Zoning:   RT, One-Family Attached Residential District 
 
Action Requested:  Rezoning Request 

 
Required Information: The required information for a rezoning has been provided. 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning from IB, Integrated Industrial Business District to Residential RT, 
One-Family Attached District.  The 1.02 acre parcel is currently improved and used as a single-family 
home.   The site is assessed via a driveway off Woodslee Road.   
 
Due to IB zoning, the single-family residential use of the property is non-conforming.  Rezoning to RT 
zoning would bring this property into use conformance.   
 
SURRONDING PROPERTY 
 

The site is adjacent to both IB and RT zoned property. This parcel and the adjacent parcel directly south 
are pockets of IB zoned properties that do not have access to Stephenson Highway.   

 
 
 



Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.    
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 

   
   
   
 

 
 
 

Adjacent zoning and land uses to the subject property is listed below: 
 

 

Items to be addressed:  None 
 

Adjacent Properties 

 Existing Use Zoning 

North  Light Industrial / Warehousing IB, Intergrated Business 

South Vacant  IB, Intergrated Business 

East Light Industrial / Warehousing IB, Intergrated Business 

West Single-family residential   Residential RT, One Family 
Attached 



Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.    
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
 

   
   
   
 

REZONING PROCEDURE 
 

Unlike a Conditional Rezoning, there are no standards for a straight rezoning.  The current procedure for 
a rezoning is as follows:  

1. The Planning Commission shall review the application for rezoning, any supplementary 
materials, and the Planning Department report  

2. The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing.  
3. Following the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to the City 

Council. 
4.    City Council shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny rezoning. 
 

Items to be addressed:  None 
 
MASTER PLAN RECOMMENDATION 
 
The subject property is on the border of Single-Family Residential and 21st Century Industrial.  The goal 
of the Single-Family Residential designation is to preserve the existing quality residential neighborhoods.  
The 21st Century Industry designation encourages a variety of general and light industrial uses including 
conventional manufacturing and assembly uses, but also promotes a broader spectrum of future higher 
technology industrial uses.   Because this site is used as residential, has no access to Stephenson 
Highway, and the only access is through a single-family residential neighborhood, the current use of the 
property more closely aligns with the Single-Family Residential designation. 
 
Items to be addressed:  None  
 
RT ZONING APPLICABLITY 
 
The 1.02 parcel may be split however any split will require improvements to extend Woodslee Road as 
well as potential purchase of additional property to provide sufficient right-of-way.     The applicant has 
not indicated that they intend to use the property as anything other than a single family residential 
property.    
 
Items to be addressed:  None   
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
After reviewing the current land use and adjacent zoning districts, we would recommend that the 
Planning Commission recommend approval of the rezoning request for this parcel from IB, Integrated 
Industrial Business District to Residential RT, One-Family Attached: 
   

A. The rezoning is supported by the Master Plan and advances the general and specific 
development policies of the Master Plan. 
 

B. If the site were developed in conformance with its underlying zoning, such development would 
be inconsistent and disruptive to the adjacent properties.  



Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.    
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 

   
   
   
 

C. The proposed rezoning would be consistent and non-disruptive to the surrounding land use 
pattern.   

 
I look forward to discussing this with you at the next Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Sincerely yours, 
 
 
  

 



  PC 2012.12.11 
  Agenda Item # 6 

 

 
 
 
 
DATE: December 7, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Bridgewater Estates Site 

 Condominium, 27 units/lots, East side of John R between Long Lake and  Square 
 Lake (5470 John R), Section 12, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
 District 

 
 
The petitioner John R Land LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan Approval 
application for a 27-unit site condominium.  The property is currently zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District.  The Planning Commission is responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval for site condominium applications.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.   City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Letter from MDEQ regarding wetlands. 
4. Comparison Between Site Condominiums and Subdivisions. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Bridgewater Estates\Preliminary Review PC Memo 12 11 2012.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Bridgewater Estates Site 
Condominium, 27 units/lots, East side of John R between Long Lake and  Square Lake 
(5470 John R), Section 12, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
 
Proposed Resolution # PC-2012-12- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Condominium Approval, pursuant to Article 8 and 
Section 10.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for Bridgewater Estates Site 
Condominium, 27 units/lots, east of John R, between Long Lake and Square Lake, 
Section 12, within the R-1C (One Family Residential) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
Provide the applicant with an opportunity to address the following items: 
 

1. Confirm maximum lot coverage. 
2. Provide typical floor plans and elevations. 
3. Show the 15-foot tree buffer along the north and west property lines that are 

adjacent to existing single-family properties. 
4. Indicate treatment of proposed road stub. 
5. Provide an access drive to the stormwater detention basin. 
6. Provide a sidewalk on the south side of the entrance drive. 
7. Provide 8-foot wide sidewalk along John R. Road. 
8. Revise sidewalk ramps to provide ramps on both sides of road. 
9. Provide planting details for stormwater detention area. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION PASSED / FAILED 
 
 



BRIDGEWATER ESTATES

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 2,621

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2180437 437Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



BRIDGEWATER ESTATES

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 2,995

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2500499 499Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 

 Date:  December 5, 2012 
  

 

Site Condominium Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Gary Tadian  
 
Project Name: Bridgewater Estates 
 
Plan Date: November 12, 2012 
 
Location: 5470 John R. Road (east side of John R. Road, north of E. Long 

Lake)  
 
Zoning: R1-C, One-family Residential District 
 
Action Requested: Site Condominium Approval 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The applicant proposes to construct a 27-lot single family detached site condominium project on the 
east side of John R. Road.  Access to all units will be via a new public street off John R. Road.  The new 
road connects to the existing Standish Road to the west and Astor Road to the north.    The proposed 
residential use is permitted by-right in the R-1C District.  The site is currently improved with one (1) 
single-family home, which will be demolished.  The site is encumbered with two (2) non-regulated 
wetlands and significant tree cover.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

2 

Location of Subject Property: 
5470 John R. Road (east side of John R. Road, north of E. Long Lake)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
The parcel is 10.2 acres in area. 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant proposes to use the site for twenty-seven (27) detached, single family homes.     
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
The subject property is currently improved with one-single family home. 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C, One-family Residential District.  
 
Surrounding Property Details 
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 
South R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
East R-1C, One-family Residential District Single-family homes 
West R-1C, One-family Residential District. Single-family homes 

 

Approximate Location of Site Development  



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

3 

SITE ARRANGEMENT 
 

The proposed site condominium consists of 27 units with lot sizes ranging between 10,700 square feet 
to 25,531 square feet, with an average lot size of 14,070 square feet.  All units front on the new public 
street off John R. Road.  Based on a recommendation of the City’s Traffic Consultant (OHM), the 
applicant has oriented the entrance to the development to line up with Stony Cove (across John R) and 
to provide adequate area for stormwater detention.  The proposed lots are regular in shape, allow for 
adequate setbacks, and permit sufficient space for the homes and ingress and egress for each unit. The 
applicant is applying the lot size averaging option, permitted and regulated by Section 10.01.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None.   
 
AREA, WIDTH, and HEIGHT   
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
Table 4.06.C establishes the requirements for the R-1C District. The requirements and the proposed 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

*The lot size average option has been applied and Section 10.02 standards have been met. 
 
While it appears that the maximum lot area covered by buildings does not exceed 30% the applicant 
should confirm this.  In addition, as required in Article 8, the applicant is to provide typical floor plans 
and elevations.  The applicant should resubmit with typical floor plans and elevations. 
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Confirm maximum lot coverage; and 2). Resubmit with typical floor plans and 
elevations. 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Front 30 foot setback 30 foot setback Complies 

Rear 40 foot setback 40 foot setback Complies 

Sides 10 foot minimum for least side 
setback, 20 foot minimum 
combined setback 

10 foot minimum for least 
side setback, 20 foot 
minimum combined setback 

Complies 

Density (number of units) 3.1 units per acre = 32 units 2.65 units per acre = 27 
units 

Complies 

Lot Size per Unit 10,500 square feet (for 
projects with sewer) 

10,700 square feet smallest; 
14,070 square feet average 

Complies 

Maximum Height 30 feet, 2.5 story Elevations not provided Unknown  

Lot Width 85 feet 76.50 feet smallest* Complies 

Maximum Lot Area Covered 
by Buildings 

30 percent Calculation not provided Unknown 

Minimum Floor Area per Unit 1,200 square feet Floor Plans not provided Unknown 



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

4 

 
The subject property is currently improved with one single-family house and includes two (2) non-
regulated wetlands and significant tree cover.   
 
Wetlands:  
 
Based on a June 25, 2012 letter, the two (2) on-site wetlands are not regulated by MDEQ.   While these 
wetlands might are not regulated, the applicant is still required to obtain final permits from the Oakland 
County Water Resources Commissioner, Road Commission for Oakland County, and the City of Troy.   
 
Trees:  
 
The applicant has provided a tree survey.  The rear end of the site is heavily wooded and there is an 
existing tree buffer along the northern property line.  Though not shown on the plans, the applicant has 
agreed to provide a 15-foot tree buffer along the north and west property lines that are adjacent to 
existing single-family properties.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide a 15-foot tree buffer along the north and west property lines that are 
adjacent to existing single-family properties 
 
ACCESS and CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular Access and Circulation:  
 
Vehicular access to all units will be via a new public street off John R. Road.  The new road connects to 
the existing Standish Road to the west and Astor Road to the north.    The applicant notes that due to 
connecting access points at Astor and Standish they are unable to provide a vehicular connection at 
Sweet Road; however they are providing a pedestrian connection.   The applicant proposes a metal 
guard rail at the termination of Sweet Road.    A portion of the new road is stubbed at the southern end 
of the subdivision to allow for an extension if/when future lots are developed on the property to the 
south.  The applicant has not indicated the treatment of this stubbed end.  Based on the direction of 
engineering, the applicant is required to provide an access drive to the stormwater detention basin.   

NATURAL RESOURCES 

Area not surveyed Area 
surveyed 15-foot tree buffer 



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

5 

 
Pedestrian Access and Circulation:  
 
The applicant is installing a 5-foot wide sidewalk along both sides of the new road, and a pedestrian 
connection to Sweet Road.  In addition, the applicant is proposing to install a 5-foot sidewalk along John 
R. Road.  The sidewalk plan needs to be revised accordingly:  

• The applicant should provide a sidewalk on the south side of the entrance drive.  
• An 8-foot wide sidewalk is required along John R. Road. 
• The applicant has shown sidewalk ramps.  The proposed sidewalk ramps in the development 

need to be revised.  A ramp on one side requires a ramp on the opposite side of the road.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Indicate treatment of proposed road stub; 2) Provide an access drive to the 
stormwater detention basin; 3). Provide a sidewalk on the south side of the entrance drive; 4). Provide 8-
foot wide sidewalk along John R. Road; and 5). Revise sidewalk ramps to provide ramps on both sides of 
the road.      
 
LANDSCAPE  
 
Site condominium and subdivision landscaping are regulated by Section 13.02.F.2.  The plan includes a 
diversified mix of deciduous and evergreens.  All proposed species fall within Troy regulations and are 
not prohibited. 
 
Landscaping requirements and treatment by applicant are:  
 

a. The frontage of all internal public or private streets shall be landscaped with the equivalent of 
one (1) tree for every fifty (50) lineal feet, or fraction thereof.  Such street trees shall meet the 
minimum size, spacing and species requirements set forth in Sections 13.02.H, Minimum Size and 
Spacing Requirements, and Section 13.02.I, Prohibited Species. 
 
Based on 3,412 feet of internal public roads the applicant has planted 69 trees.  The mix 
includes Sugar Maple, Red Maple, Hackberry, and Red Oak.  The applicant complies with this 
provision.   
 

b. Where a subdivision or site condominium contains uses which are more intense or incompatible 
with an adjoining property, the screening requirements set forth in Section 13.02.B, Screening 
Between Land Uses, shall be met.  The preservation of existing trees along perimeter boundaries 
is encouraged regardless of whether screening is required. 
 
While not applicable, the applicant has agreed to provide a minimum 15-foot buffer along the 
north and west property lines that are adjacent to existing single-family properties. 

 
c. Where a subdivision or site condominium abuts a public road right-of way located outside of the 

proposed subdivision or site condominium, the  screening requirements set forth in Section 
13.02.B, Screening Between Land  Uses shall be met in the following manner: 

1. Where a subdivision or site condominium abuts I-75 or a street right-of-way  of two 
hundred and four (204) feet as designated in the City of Troy Master  Plan, the screening 
alternative number 3, as set forth in Section 13.02,  subsection B.2.c, shall be required. 
 



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

6 

2. Where a subdivision or site condominium abuts a street right-of-way of  either one 
hundred and twenty (120) or one hundred and fifty (150) feet as  designated in the City 
of Troy Master Plan, the screening alternative number 2, as set forth in Table 13.02-A, 
shall be required. 

 
Adjacent to John R. Road the applicant is required to provide one (1) tree per fifty (50) linear 
feet.  Based on 340 linear feet the applicant is required to provide 34 trees.  The applicant has 
provided an excess of the required 34 trees.    
 

d. A landscape plan for a subdivision or site condominium development shall also include 
landscaping details of the entrance to the development, stormwater retention and/or detention 
areas, community buildings and other recreational areas, and any other site improvement which 
would be enhanced through the addition of landscaping. 

 
The applicant is has provided extensive screening of the stormwater detention area.  The 
applicant should submit planting details for the detention area.    

 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Show the 15-foot tree buffer along the north and west property lines that are 
adjacent to existing single-family properties; and 2). Provide planting details for stormwater detention 
area.   
 
SITE CONDOMINIUM IMPROVEMENTS   
 
Section 10.02.C requires that all site condominium projects shall comply with the standards and 
procedures set forth in Article 8, Site Plan Review and several unique standards.  The only standard for 
the preliminary plan is that the street pattern and fully dimensioned residential parcel layout, including 
proposed building configurations, as well as preliminary sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water main 
layout must also be submitted.  This submittal includes all the required information.  Section 10.02.E. 
regulates physical improvements associated with condominium projects.  It requires the following:  
 

1. Principal access and circulation through a site condominium shall be provided by public streets 
constructed to City standards, within sixty (60) foot wide rights-of-way. Secondary access and 
circulation through such developments, on which some of the residential parcels may have their 
sole frontage, may be provided by twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public 
street standards, within forty (40) foot private easements for public access. Satisfied. 
 

2. Principal access to site condominium of five (5) acres or less in area may be provided by way of 
twenty-eight (28) foot wide streets constructed to City public street standards, within forty (40) 
foot private easements for public access, when in the opinion of the City Council the property 
configuration is such that the provision of conforming dwelling unit parcels is impractical. Not 
applicable. 
 

3. All entrances to major or secondary thoroughfares shall include deceleration, acceleration and 
passing lanes as required by Engineering Standards of the City of Troy. Not applicable. 
 

4. Sidewalks shall be constructed, in accordance with City Standards, across the frontage of all 
dwelling unit parcels. Utilities shall be placed within street rights-of-way, or within easements 



Bridgeview Estates 
December 5, 2012 

7 

approved as to size and location by the City Engineer. The applicant shall make the noted 
required changes to the proposed sidewalks. 
 

5. All shall be served by public water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and detention/retention systems 
constructed to City standards, at the expense of the developer. Easements over these systems 
shall be conveyed and recorded before occupancy permits are issued for dwelling units. The 
applicant has proposed full utilities, but all proposed configurations and easements are 
subject to approval by the City engineering department. 

 
All condominium projects are subject to Section 8.05.A.7, which establishes the requirements for a 
preliminary site plan submittal, which is required under the site condominium regulations.  Three 
additional requirements are specifically identified for residential projects. The three additional 
requirements, identified in 8.05.A.7.o, include: 
 

i. C
alculation of the dwelling unit density allowable and a statement of the number of dwelling 
units, by type, to be provided. Satisfied. 
 

ii. T
opography on site and fifty (50) feet beyond, drawn at two (2) foot contour intervals, with 
existing drainage courses, flood plains, wetlands, and tree stands indicated. Satisfied. 
 

iii. T
he typical floor plans and elevations of the proposed buildings, with building height(s). Not 
Submitted. 

 
Items to be Addressed: Submit floor plans and elevations 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
We support the proposed project; however, we recommend that the applicant resubmit the following 
prior to Planning Commission approval: 

1. Confirm maximum lot coverage. 
2. Provide typical floor plans and elevations. 
3. Show the 15-foot tree buffer along the north and west property lines that are adjacent to 

existing single-family properties.  
4. Indicate treatment of proposed road stub. 
5. Provide an access drive to the stormwater detention basin. 
6. Provide a sidewalk on the south side of the entrance drive.  
7. Provide 8-foot wide sidewalk along John R. Road. 
8. Revise sidewalk ramps to provide ramps on both sides of road.      
9. Provide planting details for stormwater detention area. 

 









PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

 
COMPARISON BETWEEN SITE CONDOMINIUMS AND PLATS   

 
The site condominium is a form of development that closely resembles the more 
traditional form of land subdivision known as a “subdivision” or a “plat”.  Although both 
types of development have the same basic characteristics, site condominiums are a 
newer form of development and are not, therefore, as familiar to homebuyers and 
neighbors as the more customary plats.  An important concept related to any type of 
condominium development is that condominiums are a form of OWNERSHIP, not a type 
of physical development. 
 
The following summary is intended to compare and contrast the two types of 
development. 
 

1. Comparisons between site condominiums and plats. 
 

a. Statutory Basis – Site condominium subdivisions first became possible 
under the Michigan Condominium Act, which was adopted by the Michigan 
Legislature in 1978.  Plats are created under the Michigan Land Division 
Act, formerly the Michigan Subdivision Control Act of 1967. 

 
b. Nature and Extent of Property Ownership – An individual homesite 

building in a platted subdivision is called a “lot”.  In a site condominium, 
each separate building site or homesite is referred to by the Condominium 
Act as a “unit”.  Each unit is surrounded by “limited common area”, which is 
defined as common elements reserved in the master deed for the exclusive 
use of less than all of the co-owners”.  The remaining area in the site 
condominium is “general common area”, defined as the common elements 
reserved in the master deed for the use of all of the co-owners.  The nature 
and extent of ownership of a platted lot and a condominium unit, with the 
associated limited common area, are essentially equivalent from both a 
practical and legal standpoint. 

 
c. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance – Both site condominiums and 

subdivisions are required to comply with the minimum requirements of the 
City of Troy Zoning Ordinance for area and bulk, including minimum lot 
size, lot width, setbacks and building height.  Essentially, site 
condominiums and subdivisions in Troy must “look” similar.   

 
d. Creation/Legal Document – A site condominium is established by 

recording in the records of the county in which the land is located a master 
deed, bylaws and condominium subdivision plan (“plan”).  A platted 
subdivision is created by the recording of a subdivision plat (“plat”), usually 
coupled with a declaration of easements, covenants, conditions and 
restrictions   The plan depicts the condominium units and limited and 
general common areas, while the plat defines the lots.  Both have 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

substantially the same geometrical appearance and characteristics.  The 
master deed and bylaws on the one hand and the declaration on the other 
have essentially the same functions with respect to the site condominium or 
platted subdivision, namely, establishment of:  (i) building and use 
restrictions; (ii) rights of homeowners to use common areas; (iii) financial 
obligations of owners; and, (iv) procedures for operation of the subdivision. 

 
e. Home Maintenance and Real Estate Taxes – Each unit and lot, as 

respectively depicted on a condominium plan or subdivision plat, together 
with any home located thereon, are required to be individually maintained 
by the owner.  Likewise, separate real estate taxes are assessed on each 
condominium unit or platted lot and paid individually by each homeowner. 

 
f. Roads and Utilities – In most plats, roads are dedicated to the public and 

maintained by the county road commission or the municipality in which the 
subdivision is located.  Site condominium roads can be either public or 
private.  Sanitary sewer and water supply are public in both.  Storm water 
detention can vary between public and private dedication in both platted 
and condominium subdivisions.   

 
g. Common Areas – In a site condominium, general common areas, such as 

open space, entrance areas and storm drainage system, are owned by 
condominium unit owners in common as an incident of ownership of each 
unit.  In a platted subdivision, legal title to common areas is owned by a 
homeowners association.  In both forms of development, a homeowners 
association administers the common areas for the benefit of all 
homeowners equally. 

 
h. Homeowners Association – It is important in both types of development 

to incorporate a homeowners association comprised of all lot owners or unit 
owners, as the case may be, to maintain common areas, enforce 
restrictions and regulations, collect assessments and otherwise administer 
the common affairs of the development.  Because the Condominium Act 
confers special enforcement powers upon homeowner associations, which 
are not characteristic of platted subdivision associations, it is generally 
thought that the condominium form is superior from the standpoint of 
enforcing rules and regulations of the private community. 

 
i. Financial Obligations of Homeowners – In both types of development, 

the homeowners association is given the power to assess property owners 
to pay for maintenance of all common areas and other expenses of 
administration.  Failure to pay give rise to a lien on the defaulting owner’s 
homesite thus providing financial security that the common areas will be 
properly maintained for the benefit of all homeowners. 

 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 
01-15-03 

j. Public Relations – The same types of public health, safety and welfare 
regulations apply to both forms of development.  Procedurally, the methods 
of applying for and obtaining plat or condominium plan approval are similar 
at the municipal level. 

 
k. Unique Characteristics of Condominium Unit Purchase – The 

Condominium Act provides special benefits for site condominium unit 
purchasers:  (i) a 9-day period after signing a purchase agreement within 
which a purchaser may withdraw without penalty; and (ii) a requirement that 
all condominium documents, supplemented by an explanatory disclosure 
statement, be furnished to all purchasers at the time of entry into a 
purchase agreement.  There are no similar benefits to purchasers provided 
under the Land Division Act. 

 
l. Local and State Review – Both development types require City Council 

approval, following a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  Unlike 
subdivisions, site condominiums do not require the review and approval of 
the Michigan Department of Consumer and Industry Services. For this 
reason it can sometimes take a substantially shorter period of time to obtain 
necessary public approvals of site condominiums than platted subdivisions.   

 
2. Reason for choosing one form versus another. 

 
Developers and municipalities often prefer the site condominium approach 
because of better control of market timing.  It should be emphasized that the 
site condominium choice never sacrifices any public protections that would 
otherwise be present in the case of a platted subdivision under similar 
circumstances. 

 
3. Conclusion. 

 
The platted subdivision approach and the newer site condominium technique 
are two different statutory methods of reaching essentially the same practical 
and legal result of dividing real estate into separate residential building sites.  
Both methods are required to meet substantially the same public health, safety 
and welfare requirements.  The site condominium is sometimes chosen over 
the platted subdivisions because of perceived benefits to purchasers, 
homeowners, and developers. 

 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Comparison of Site Condos and Plats.doc 



















  PC 2012.12.11 
  Agenda Item # 7 

 

 
 
DATE: December 7, 2012 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of 

 Troy, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently 
 Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
 
The petitioner Galleria of Toy LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for two restaurants, a retail building and future hotel(s) within the Big 
Beaver corridor.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item.  
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979 Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\SP-979 PC Memo 12 11 2012.docx 
 



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 1,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1560312 312Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 2,059

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1720343 343Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1

Green: Band_2

Blue:   Band_3



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: December 6, 2012 
 
RE: Galleria of Troy   
 
 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed commercial development at the 
parcel located at the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Wilshire/Troy Plaza Drive.  We received the full-
set of plans on December 4, 2012 and have not had time to complete a full site plan review.  A full site 
plan review should be completed prior to Planning Commission approval.  However in the meantime, 
the applicant has asked for some preliminary comments from the Planning Commission.  We offer the 
following comments for the Planning Commission consideration:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Development Summary 
 
The applicant is proposing a restaurant, retail, and hotel development on the existing vacant 5.9 acre 
site.  The applicant proposes to develop the site in two phases.  The proposed first phase is the 
development of three pad sites that front on Big Beaver.  The front western pad will be a Carrabbas 
Italian Grill, the front eastern pad will be a Bonefish Grill, and the user(s) of the front middle pad has not 
been determined.  The applicant has labeled the middle pad as retail; however in discussions with the 
applicant they have indicated that this pad might include some restaurant uses.  Access to this phase will 
be via two (2) curb cuts off Troy Center Drive.    
 
The second phase will be the development of the back end of the site for hotel use.  The applicant has 
not submitted a site plan but has indicated the potential for up to two (2) hotels.   The applicant has not 
indicated the timing of the second phase.   
 
The property is zoned Big Beaver Form-Based District.  The proposed development and mix of uses are 
by-right and only require Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Commission.   
 
Master Plan and Overall Design 
 
The site was identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study as one of five Corridor “Gateway” locations.  The 
plan calls for:  

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• Multiple level buildings which includes vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office and 
residential towers.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and activity 
for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 

 
Though desired by the Master Plan a single large building or multiple storied buildings along Big Beaver 
at this site might not be achievable.  However, there is an opportunity to develop a well-integrate site 
that includes creative yet consistent designed buildings.   While we recognize that there are a multitude 
of different architectural styles and patterns along Big Beaver, creating site integration, cohesiveness, 
and a consistent design pattern both between and among this site is important.    Because of its high 
visibility and prominence along Big Beaver, a key to site integration and cohesiveness, is a consistent 
building design pattern as well as the treatment and interaction between the buildings and the 
public/semi-public space along Big Beaver.   
 
Through a semi-public plaza/streetscape design along Big Beaver, the applicant has attempted to 
provide site integration.  The proposed semi-public plaza along the entire length of the development on 
Big Beaver is good first step.   For further consideration of the public and semi-public space, we 
suggested that the applicant consider the recommendations in Big Beaver Design Guidelines 
(http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/BigBeaverDesignGuidelines.pdf), specifically the treatment adjacent 
to the right-of-way shown on page 22 and the rendering on page 23.    The applicant may wish to 
consider greater design features for the plaza including:  

http://www.troymi.gov/Planning/BigBeaverDesignGuidelines.pdf�


Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

Examples of other Bonefish designs 

• A signature design element.  Can include public art, sculpture, vertical feature, etc 
• More decorative lighting fixture 
• Use of paver or brick even if only as accent material 
• Ornamental fencing for restaurant outdoor seating 
• Inclusion of benches, trash enclosures, bike racks 

 
In regards to the building design, site cohesiveness and integration is predicated on a common design 
element for the buildings fronting along Big Beaver.  Due to corporate desires, building design/frontage 
consistency might be more difficult.  One corner you have a rustic Italian style Carrabba’s on the other 
you have “Floridian” style Bonefish, with a “retail” building in the middle.  The applicant should indicate 
common design elements that are incorporated for all three buildings.  In order to better understand 
the relationship and compatibility of the buildings along Big Beaver, it would be helpful if the applicant 
were to provide a rendering along the entire length of Big Beaver showing all three buildings.   
 
Specifically, in regards to each building, our comments are listed below:  

Bonefish Grill: 
• The building is located 31.0 feet from Troy 

Center Drive and 30.0 feet from Big Beaver 
(Planning Commission may approve setback 
up to 30’ from ROW).  Applicant must justify 
30’ setback by providing patio, plaza, 
landscaping, art, amenities, etc.   

• Applicant should provide a color rendering of 
the building and the area surrounding 
Bonefish Grill, showing materials, plants, 
benches, etc. 

• We encourage the applicant to consider one 
(1) trash enclosure area along the eastern 
property line for all three (3) buildings. 

• The rear elevation (fronting on parking lot) 
highlights trash enclosure area.  
Furthermore, the trash enclosure area is 
located at the northeast corner of the 
building which is directly adjacent to the 
pedestrian walkway.  If the applicant is not 
able to provide a common trash enclosure 
area for all three (3) buildings, the applicant 
should either relocate the Bonefish trash 
enclosure area inside the building or relocate 
the outdoor trash enclosure to the northwest 
corner of the building.   If the trash enclosure 
area is outside of the building, screening 
must include appropriate materials and 
design.    

• E.I.F.S. should not be primary material and 
rather used as accent material.  



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

Examples of other Carrabba’s design 

• Applicant shall confirm that they meet the Big Beaver Form-Based District design criteria as set 
forth in section 5.04.E.  

 
Retail Building:  

• Applicant should provide a color rendering of the building and the area surrounding showing 
materials, plants, benches, etc. 

• Indicate use of materials and design features that provide design consistency between Bonefish 
and Carrabba’s 

 
Carrabba’s: 

• The building is located 30 feet from 
Big Beaver.  The Planning 
Commission may approve setback 
up to 30’ from ROW).  Applicant 
must justify 30’ setback by 
providing patio, plaza, landscaping, 
art, amenities, etc.  

• E.I.F.S. should not be primary 
material and rather used as accent 
material.  

• Consider adding more height or 
variety in roof articulation.   

• Applicant should provide a color 
rendering of the building and the 
area surrounding Carrabba’s, 
showing materials, plants, 
benches, etc. 

• Applicant shall confirm that they 
meet the Big Beaver Form-Based 
District design criteria as set forth 
in section 5.04.E.  

 
Summary and Recommendations 
 
We strongly encourage the development of 
this site and we applaud the applicants 
attempt to turn a vacant site into a viable 
commercial development. With additional 
direction from the Planning Commission, the applicant should be able to resubmit a plan that provides 
site integration, cohesiveness, and a consistent design pattern.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
 
CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 

 
 
  



























12033

B
O

N
E

F
I
S

H
 
G

R
I
L
L

HCG

12/3/12

DWM

B
i
g
 
B

e
a
v
e
r
 
R

o
a
d

T
r
o
y
,
 
M

i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
4
8
0
8
4

G
a
l
l
e
r
i
a
 
a
t
 
T

r
o
y

A1.1

FLOOR PLAN



A2.1

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

& DETAILS

12033

B
O

N
E

F
I
S

H
 
G

R
I
L
L

HCG

12/3/12

DWM

B
i
g
 
B

e
a
v
e
r
 
R

o
a
d

T
r
o
y
,
 
M

i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
4
8
0
8
4

G
a
l
l
e
r
i
a
 
a
t
 
T

r
o
y



A2.2

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS

12033

B
O

N
E

F
I
S

H
 
G

R
I
L
L

HCG

12/3/12

DWM

B
i
g
 
B

e
a
v
e
r
 
R

o
a
d

T
r
o
y
,
 
M

i
c
h
i
g
a
n
 
4
8
0
8
4

G
a
l
l
e
r
i
a
 
a
t
 
T

r
o
y














	Bridgeview Estates Site Condo.pdf
	SITE ARRANGEMENT
	AREA, WIDTH, and HEIGHT  
	ACCESS and CIRCULATION
	SITE CONDOMINIUM IMPROVEMENTS  

	Wetlands Letter.pdf
	Application
	12-059 ALTA 12y06m29 rev2
	12059 - MDEQ Letter (no 301 or 303 permit required)
	(P-1) COVER-12059-P-1
	(P-2) TOPO-12059-(P-2)
	(P-3) SITE PLAN-12059-(P-3)
	(P-4) GRADING PLAN-12059-(P-4)
	(P-5) UTILITY PLAN-12059-(P-5)
	(P-6) TREE PRES PLAN-12059-(P-6.0)
	(P-6) TREE PRES PLAN-12059-(P-6.1)
	(L-1) SITE PLAN-12059-(L-1)

	Bridgewater Estates Site Plans 2012 12 04.pdf
	(P-1) COVER-12059-P-1
	(P-2) TOPO-12059-(P-2)
	(P-3) SITE PLAN-12059-(P-3)
	(P-4) GRADING PLAN-12059-(P-4)
	(P-5) UTILITY PLAN-12059-(P-5)
	(P-6) TREE PRES PLAN-12059-(P-6.0)
	(P-6) TREE PRES PLAN-12059-(P-6.1)
	(L-1) SITE PLAN-12059-(L-1)




